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SENATOR RODERICK WRIGHT:  ____________ the way the Senate process is is that we have a hearing and then the bill will move to the Floor where it will be voted on as soon as we can get the product before us.  So I know some people are going, “Wow, they didn’t vote;” they didn’t have enough people.  On the Senate side, we don’t vote on compacts in committee, so it’s not a change for the day; that’s just our process here.


Let me welcome the Graton Rancheria and all of its members.  I understand, and I hope I’m correct, that the Tribe is comfortable with the Compact and that you retain the revenues to the 1,300 members, and to pay down the debt, and that all of that works for you.  
This Compact will take into consideration the decision that the Court of Appeals; what we around here call the Rincon Decision, which held that none of the money for this casino will go into the General Fund in exchange for approval.  The Compact contains no revenue sharing requirement between the State and the Tribe, again, relating to payments going into the General Fund. 
I could go into a whole bunch of other things but let me say again; the vehicle that we’re going to use for this Compact is AB 517, which is an assembly bill authored by Assemblymember Hall.  That bill is currently pending in our Second Reading file in the Senate.  Again, that’s not important because it’s going to come up on the Senate Floor as soon as we can move it to Third Reading.  

I know many of you have travelled a good way to get here; let me thank you for that.  
We’re going to take testimony today from Jacob Appelsmith, who kind of, sort of does everything for gaming and alcohol to the Governor.  And the Tribal Chairman, Greg Sarris is here.  And we’ll have public comment at the end.  I think that lays out everything that we’re going to do.  
So let me see who we’re starting with.  Why don’t we start with Jacob Appelsmith, the senior advisor to Governor Brown.

MR. JACOB APPELSMITH:  Thank you, Chairman, Members of the Committee.  

California communities and tribes are unique and so should their gaming compacts be.  This Compact is right for Rohnert Park, the county of Sonoma, and the Graton Tribe.  It reflects Governor Brown’s commitment to work with counties, with localities, and with tribes to achieve compacts that are right for their particular circumstances.  The Compact incorporates the most recent compact regulations in terms of environmental protection, employment rights, public protection, gaming regulation, and such.  

In terms of revenue, it provides the city of Rohnert Park with approximately    $6 million per year.  For Sonoma County, it provides the county with approximately  $5 million per year in the first seven years, and then $30 million or more in the out years—out years 8 through 20.  
The Compact provides significant revenues to the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund, which is the fund that is established by the compacts and the Legislature to help tribes that do not profit from gaming either because they have small operations or because they do not engage in gaming at all.  That fund currently has a structural deficit of approximately $28 million per year.  This Compact will put $9 million into that fund in the first year; far more than any other tribe pays.  And in the out years—years 8 through 20—it will provide a minimum of $12 million to that fund.

The Compact also provides money to the Special Distribution Fund, which is the fund that the State uses to cover its regulatory costs, as well as local mitigation grants.  In the first seven years, the Compact provides $1.4 million as a fixed payment to that fund.  In years 8 through 20, it provides 3 percent of the Tribe’s net win, which we project to be between $12- and $18 million per year.  That again, would be far more than any tribe pays currently into that fund.

We incorporated a graduated payment schedule for the Tribe given the Tribe’s exceptional amount of pre-development debt and that will allow the Tribe to profit from the casino in terms of providing services and the needs of its members in years    1 through 7.  And then in years 8 through 20 when its debt service has been satisfied, the Tribe will see increased revenues, as will the State’s funds, the city, and the county.

In terms of the revenue projections the Compact has … we used a model of approximately $300 per day per machine of net win.  If the Tribe does better than that, we have a provision in the Compact that will provide additional revenue to the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund.  If the net win is $350 per day, then the additional revenue to that fund will be $8 million per year in years 1 through 7; $400 per day, it will be $22 million; and $450 per day, it will be $35 million.  We have a reasonable belief that we may see revenues in that $350 to $450 per win per day based on comparable casinos in the State.  There are five that we have modeled this on and they all have net win in that range.  If we see a net win of $400 per day, the entire structural deficit of the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund would be cured by this Compact. 

We also established a new fund in this Compact called the Tribal Nation Grant Fund.  While the RSTF has done many good things for tribes around the State, it is modeled on 1999 dollars of $1.1 million per year that is fixed in perpetuity and that is not allocated according to the needs of tribes.  When we’re able to cure the structural deficit in the RSTF, there will be money for this Tribal Nation Grant Fund to be created by the Legislature that can be awarded to tribes in accordance with their economic and development needs.

And with that, I’ll be happy to answer any questions you have, Chairman and Members of the Committee.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  I think we’ll keep moving.  Senator Yee.

SENATOR LELAND YEE:  Just for information only through the Chair.  You had mentioned a number of dollars that the Tribe will be remitting to the State.  Could you put it in a chart with timeframes as to when those dollars should be coming to us and so on?

MR. APPELSMITH:  Would you like me to provide that in writing to you subsequent or would you like me to state it right now?

SENATOR YEE:  No.  I think you stated it.  But if you could through the Chair, submit that to the Chair, that committee members will have it available.

MR. APPELSMITH:  Yes, Mr. Yee.

SENATOR YEE:  And then the second question, or second point, is that you indicated that the dollars that would come to the State because of net increases—and you’ve also indicated anticipated dollars that the Tribe will make—are those audited numbers?  How do we know that these numbers will hit a particular mark?

MR. APPELSMITH:  The numbers are audited by … the Tribe has independent auditors under the Compact that audit first and then the State comes in and performs a secondary audit to ensure that the funds that the Tribe is obligated to remit to the State are paid.

SENATOR YEE:  And then just a follow-up:  Is that audit that the State conducts, is that audit based on the audit information that’s given by the Tribe or can, in fact, the State go inside the Tribe and audit the numbers themselves?

MR. APPELSMITH:  The State can go in and audit the Tribe’s numbers itself, and, in fact, does do that on a rotating basis.

SENATOR YEE:  Okay.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Any other questions from the panel?  Okay.  We’re going to move forward with recognizing Aaron Read, of Aaron Read and Associates.  And I think you have a group of people to introduce and present.

MR. AARON READ:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman and Members.  It’s my pleasure to introduce to you the chairman of the Graton Rancheria; Chairman Sarris is with us and I’d like to introduce him.  So he may introduce some of his councilmembers who are here with him and then present his testimony.

MR. GREG SARRIS:  Thank you, Aaron.  Chairman Wright and Committee, thank you for the time this morning.  I’d like to begin my testimony by pointing out and introducing my Council.  My entire tribal council is here, as well many of my tribal family members.  And I would like the council in the front row to please stand and other tribal members who are in attendance.  Thank you.
We’re here as a united front and I’d like to begin, having said that, introduce ourselves a little bit historically.  

We’re the descendants of Coast Miwok and Southern Pomo Peoples.  At the time of contact there are approximately 20- to 30,000 of us in the area that today is known as Southern Sonoma County and Marin County.  All of us, the 1,300 members in the tribe today, are the descendants of 14 survivors.  At the time of contact, of course, many of us were taken into the missions.  And then the subsequent Mexican Rancho period in 1850, after the Bear Flag Revolution when California became a state, the first piece of legislation that this state enacted was the Act for the Government and Protection of Indians, which, in essence, legalized Indian slavery.  It stipulated that Indians became the rightful property of whose ever land they were on.  That law was not repealed until 1868, three years after the Civil War.  We then became indentured servants, those of us who survived, in various places.  
And in the early part of the 20th century, the federal government began establishing Rancherias for the homeless Indians of California.  And so, when you hear a lot of people say, “Well, we’re not tribes,” what happened was, in most areas in California, particularly Central California, they would designate Indian people who are census to go to a particular Rancheria.  In our case, the legislation said that there was 15.5 acres established in Graton for the so-called homeless Indians of Tomales Bay, Bodega Bay, Sebastopol, and the vicinities thereof.  So our ancestors, at that point, in 1922, became designees for that Rancheria and the federal government de facto and then created the tribe—the Graton Rancheria.  And that history is comparable for many tribes in the area.  
The Rancheria was terminated in 1958 illegally.  The federal government stipulated that we could … it was an updated version of the Dawes Act—the California Indian Rancheria Termination Act, and you could terminate your status as a federally recognized tribe by consensus of the tribe.  In our case, there was not consensus and that was established.  
We reorganized in 1992, exactly 20 years ago, and mainly around trying to keep recognized, federally recognized, tribes from other areas out of our area who wanted to do gaming in our area, but we had no status.  If you’re not a federally recognized tribe, you basically have the power and the status of a Saturday afternoon card club.  So we began an 8-year push to get federally recognized.
In 2000, in December of 2000, two weeks before President Clinton went out of office, he signed our legislation—our bill.  The bill stipulated that you shall take land into trust.  I stated at that time that we were not interested in gaming and we weren’t.  We wanted access to federal monies and so forth for our tribe.  Unfortunately, at that time, we did not get a line on the federal budget and while the federal government stipulated that you take land into trust, it didn’t say it would pay for it.  And we are in wealthy Marin and Sonoma Counties and we were very much … we negotiated with Tillamook Cheese and many other companies we spoke with, but they weren’t willing to put up the money to buy the land.  They wanted to do business with us, but we had no collateral.  We couldn’t put up the land.  
And in about two-and-a-half years later, in April of 2003, we began to assess as a community how are we going to buy land?  We didn’t have other options.  And, of course, folks, all of us began to discuss the word “casino” and we then thought, “Can we do something that would benefit our tribe and non-Indian people alike?  Can we do something that’s novel and new?  Can we do this where it can really finally create something so that our people for the first time can have some control of their fate and destiny?”  Again, our people are poor.  Our life expectancy for men is 55 years.  We had nearly an 80 percent dropout rate among our students.  So we began the push and we started something with Station Casinos.  We created a contract and a deal with our attorney with Station Casinos.  That began in 2003, a six-and-a-half year environmental review.  
We first went to Highway 37, to 2,000 acres on Highway 37.  When we realized over community protest and concern, when we agreed that that was not the best place; it was where they were doing bay restoration and we did not want to get involved with that.  So we quickly acquiesced, and not only acquiesced, but I want to underscore; gave our down payment, $4.5 million, we gave that land to Sonoma County Land Pass.  We gave it to them and then we gave them an additional $75,000 to raise the money to get the rest of the money to put that into trust, or into the land trust—the open space and conservation.  We then worked with Sonoma County and others.  Looked at several different sites; chose one in Rohnert Park; bought that and when we realized much of the land was in a floodplain and again environmentally unsound, we decided to move again when we found that there was a parcel of land next door that had already been zoned for commercial development.  Thus began the long environmental review, which has included four public hearings and 160 days of public comment on that hearing.  And we’ll hear more about that later.  Of course, we then had to, after the EIS and the public hearings, the federal government, in October of 2010, took our land into trust.  In the process, we’ve incurred the largest pre-development costs of any American Indian gaming tribe to the tune of, at this point, approximately $230 million that we’re paying an inordinate amount of interest on every day.  But we still, the Tribe and all of us, have kept faith.  
And when we finally got to Jacob Appelsmith and the Governor, we told them a lot of what we wanted to do.  We wanted to be good neighbors.  And I think, as Jacob articulated, for the first time and in post-Rincon history, we created something that will indeed benefit Indian and non-Indian alike.  As I’ve spoken with supervisors and city council, Sonoma County supervisors and Rohnert Park city councilmembers, they are going to have an unprecedented amount of revenue go back; revenue that the city and county badly need.  But equally important, it will position us, because we in negotiating will have … the Tribe will have a say in how the money is spent.  And in addition to creating the 900 jobs in the construction and the over 2,000 jobs that will operate this, we feel that we have done and will be doing a great thing for our community.
Most importantly, I have to say for the Tribe, this Compact and this opportunity will position us for the first time in our long history to once again be engaged empowered citizens of the larger community and be able to determine our destiny and our fate.

Thank you.

MR. MATTHEW ADAMS:  My name is Matthew Adams.  Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee, I’m a partner at SNR Denton, Environmental Counsel for the Tribe.  

I’d like to address briefly three points on the environmental impact statement, or, EIS, that was prepared by the National Indian Gaming Commission for the project.

First, as Chairman Sarris mentioned, this is an extraordinarily thorough EIS.  As you can probably see by the binders spread out around me, it covers every conceivable environmental issue.  It evaluates a full range of alternatives:  gaming alternatives, non-gaming development alternatives, different development sites, and the alternative of not developing anything at all.  I’ve been working on NEPA and CEQA documents for tribal projects for about 10 years and this is the most comprehensive document I have seen in that time.

Second, the public participation opportunities that went into this EIS also go well beyond anything that CEQA or NEPA requires.  There were two scoping processes, each one featuring a public hearing and a public comment period.  The draft EIS alone was circulated for 88 days, which is about double what’s required under NEPA and CEQA.  There were two public hearings on the draft EIS, both of which were presided over by a retired State Appellate judge.  And then there was another round of comments on the final EIS.  And all of this, again, goes well beyond what would be required under CEQA or under NEPA.

Third, the result of all this environmental analysis and public comment is a well cited and well-designed project.  Let me just give you a couple of examples and I won’t try and cover everything that’s in these binders.
SENATOR WRIGHT:  That’s a good thing.

MR. ADAMS:  Yes.  (Laughter)  As Chairman Sarris mentioned, the NIGC and the Tribe considered several potential project sites.  They chose a site that had already been designated for development.  On one side of the site there is a freeway; across the street there is a Home Depot; next to the Home Depot there’s a Walmart; and on the other side of the site there is a fully built-out business park, so this is an entirely appropriate site for a commercial development of this kind.  

In the EIS process there were concerns that the project will create too much traffic.  Now, obviously, the Tribe can’t unilaterally make changes to the state and local roadway system, but what the Tribe did do was pledge to make any improvements that are needed for traffic purposes and to pay their fair share of that with the fair share to be determined on exactly the same basis that would be required under CEQA for any other developer.

The EIS process also brought to light some concerns about water supply and I’d like to address those briefly.  In response to concerns about water supply, the Tribe cut the size of the project.  The Tribe agreed to use recycled water throughout the project.  The Tribe also agreed to a groundwater monitoring arrangement whereby it will ensure that none of the surrounding well owners will be impacted in any way.  And we’re not aware of any other commercial development that’s taken these steps in the area.  This is really different.

Finally, there were some concerns about wetlands, as Chairman Sarris mentioned.  And I just want to underscore that the project has been redesigned three different times to avoid wetlands, with the ultimate result being that there will be less than one-half on one acre of impacts on the entire 252 acre site and for that less than one-half of one acre of impact, the Tribe will pay for compensatory mitigation.

So in sum:  This is an example of the process working as it’s supposed to work.  There was extensive environmental analysis and public participation, both of which led to important changes in the project design.  And the result is a project that after mitigation will not have any significant impacts on the environment.  

I believe Mr. Maier is going to provide a little bit more details on the issue of mitigation and specifically on the issue of arrangements with the city and with the county.  
MR. JOHN MAIER:  Thank you, Matt.  As Jacob and the Chairman indicated, the Compact creates the Great Mitigation Fund.  This is a new fund that we haven’t seen in compacts before because of Rincon—came out of that—in that the funds instead of … that the Tribe pays … the majority of funds that the Tribe pays in the Compact rather than going to the State General Fund, are basically coming back to the local community through this Great Mitigation Fund.  

In April 2003, or I’m sorry, October 2003, the Tribe negotiated a historic MOU with the city of Rohnert Park.  And Gabe Gonzalez, the city manager, will be going into more detail about that arrangement.

In November of 2004, the Tribe entered into an agreement with the county of Sonoma whereby the county and the Tribe agreed to a mechanism to negotiate an agreement once the environmental review process had been completed and the county and the Tribe fully understood all the impacts that this project would create.  The Tribe is currently in negotiations with the county on specifying where the money from the Great Mitigation Fund will go in order to mitigate impacts and to do other things that the Tribe is interested, as well as what the county is interested in, such as things like providing a mechanism for funding of regional parks, education programs, and other charitable giving that is permitted under the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act.

The Tribe envisions an agreement with the county that would provide approximately $5- to $6 million a year in the first seven years with some minimum guaranteed payment in the event that the Great Mitigation Fund falls short in those early years.  And then the monies that we project coming out of the Great Mitigation Fund in the future years could be as much as $20- to $30 million to the county.  In addition, as Jacob indicated, the MOU with the city would provide, I think Jacob said, $6 million; it’s actually $9 million a year and then there’s a CPI adjustment to that.  In the early years of the city MOU payments, they will be reduced slightly because the Tribe has already paid over $5 million in advance payments pursuant to that MOU in part to pay for a special enforcement unit.  Approximately $2.8 million was provided to the city for that purpose to combat drugs and gangs and then also for charitable giving to education programs.  
The MOU envisions … the county MOU and the city MOU will pay for any project impacts that are incurred by the community.  At the county MOU, we envision a mechanism whereby if other jurisdictions are impacted, i.e. Caltrans or there are some … in the EIS mitigation payments … mitigation measures, there are some payments owed to the city of Santa Rosa and some other local jurisdictions to mitigate crime impacts, those will be fully funded and paid for through a mechanism through the county.

The final thing I just want to mention, is that this Tribe has worked very hard for the last nine years to do what’s right by the community.  I think the Chairman eloquently laid out the extraordinary steps that the Tribe has taken.  In particular, moving locations three times; providing revenues in advance, which the Tribe is incurring interest on.  
And the one thing I want to say internally, which I think is important to the Chairman and the members, is the issue of, in the future, of disenrollments in tribes.  And one of the things that this Tribe is going to do is working on constitutional amendments which will allow their citizens’ rights to vest so there won’t be disenrollments, and I think that’s just an example of the kind of tribe this is.  

This is a wonderful project and the thing that we haven’t mentioned much but which is extraordinarily important, is this will provide 900 construction jobs to the community this summer if we can get this thing ratified, approved by the secretary, financing arranged, and the project moving.

So I appreciate it.  And I’m happy to answer any questions.  

For now, I’m going to have Gabe Gonzalez, the city manager, speak.

MR. GABE GONZALEZ:  Good morning, Chair Wright, Members of the Committee.  My name is Gabe Gonzalez, city manager of the city of Rohnert Park.  Rohnert Park, for those of you who have not visited our city, and we invite you to visit any time, is located 45 miles north of the Golden Gate Bridge and straddles both sides of Highway 101.  With a population of 42,000 residents, Rohnert Park is the third largest city in Sonoma County.

I’d like to state that due to time constraints associated … we’re presenting a statement at this hearing.  My comments today solely reflect those of mine as city manager as my city council has not yet had an opportunity to discuss this matter.

Like all cities in California, we’re struggling with budget issues and other challenges.  In light of that reality, the possibility of an Indian gaming facility presents a range of opportunities and challenges which we gladly accept.  

Our approach to the Compact and associated gaming has been to view the prospect as a planning issue.  While the atmosphere surrounding this type of land use is often politically charged, we have worked hard to regard it the same as a project application and therefore have concentrated mainly on land use, appropriate mitigation, and the assurance of revenue sharing that will benefit the residents of our community.  
It’s already been stated that we have a revenue sharing agreement with the Tribe.  And in 2003, Tribal authorities and the city of Rohnert Park reached a       $200 million revenue sharing arrangement.  And I should add, and it’s been mentioned, that well before the Tribe needed to, the Graton Rancheria began advancing payments of $500,000 a year specifically earmarked for our special enforcement unit; a group of dedicated law enforcement personnel specifically tasked with reducing crime in the community.  

As we move forward, we do so knowing that many questions still remain unanswered in terms of land use specifics.  However, we have a solid working relationship with the Tribe and expect nothing to change.  Tribal leaders have expressed their willingness to cooperate fully in mitigating land use questions and have worked with the city in good faith.  While some in the community and in the region may not want a gaming facility at the current location, that decision is not in the hands of the city and we recognize that.  The state and federal agencies tasked with making those decisions are receiving input and will view the city’s role as assuring that we have the very best land use project that we can possibly achieve.  Our professional planning staff and others working on the project are well-suited to protect the interest of the community.

My message today is that we will continue to maintain strong relations with the Graton Rancheria and together, if the Compact goes forward, to cooperatively guarantee a project that comfortably fits within our strict planning and mitigation guidelines.  

I thank you for the opportunity to speak before you and I’m available for any questions you may have.  

Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Any questions from the panel?  A couple that I have:  as I’m looking at and listening to the discussion the promises here are great.  If the revenue doesn’t come in as projected, because this is a business venture, this isn’t guaranteed revenue; are there any guarantors, are there any cosigners, are there any others beyond the hope that you get the traffic at the casino to cover this owe?  Because there seems to be a lot of people who are counting on dollars that may not materialize; what happens if those dollars fail?

MR. MAIER:  I think the revenue projections that we provided to the State and that we negotiated with the State are relatively safe numbers.  And what the State provided in return was that we wouldn’t be making … the Tribe would be making lower revenue payments in the early years in order to allow the Tribe to pay off its debt in a timely fashion so that as soon as possible real revenues start flowing to the Tribe in substantial numbers so that we can assist the 1,300 tribal members.  If it doesn’t happen at all, then …

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Time-out.  So let’s assume the revenue came in at 50 percent of what you projected for whatever reason: the economy takes a downturn, whatever the case might be.  The reliance that I’ve seen, then, on all of the payouts are based on that revenue materializing, so there’s no other guarantee beyond the success of the operation of the facility to get the revenue.  

MR. MAIER:  My guess is that if the projections were not real and it was too risky, that we would not be able to arrange the financing to finance this.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Okay.  So let me try this again.  

MR. APPELSMITH:  Chairman, there are certain guaranteed payments under the Compact.  Those are the ones that go to the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund; the ones that go to the Special Distribution Fund; and the amounts that go to Rohnert Park.  To what degree they’ll be guaranteed as to the county of Sonoma, I defer to the Tribe’s counsel because we haven’t been directly involved in those negotiations.  But in terms of the substantial numbers that would go to Sonoma; that is the entity that is most relying on the success of the casino.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  I’ll go back to Senator Yee in just a second.  So let’s take the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund; if the projections come in short is the Tribe obligated, then, to incur debt to cover that cost?

MR. APPELSMITH:  Yes.  Those numbers are based on per machine.  What would happen if the numbers don’t come in as projected, they would probably reduce the number of machines and there would be a reduced payment into the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund, but it’s still based on the number of machines present.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Okay.  Another question I had … and I’m going to Senator Yee in just a second … in the case of Rohnert Park, I understand that your agreement is not yet in statute.  The council has not officially acted, or, have they officially acted?

MR. GONZALEZ:  Chairman, the comments I reflected are mine as city manager not as those of the city council; but the city council, when the agreement, when the MOU was ratified in 2003/2004, the council has ratified that officially.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Okay.  So the council is on board but they just didn’t send you today?

MR. GONZALEZ:  Right.  They have not had a chance because this is so fast moving in terms of being presented.  And this informational hearing, we didn’t have a council meeting in sufficient time for that purpose.
SENATOR WRIGHT:  Oh, okay.  I just want to make clear that the discussion is about today and not the Compact in general for the …

MR. GONZALEZ:  Correct.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Okay.  Senator Yee.

SENATOR YEE:  Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.  I just want to follow-up on a point you raised.  And I think that the better person to ask the question you asked is the Governor’s representative.  

But before I say that, I want to just thank Mr. Sarris, as tribal leader, that you are in fact demonstrating tremendous leadership not only for your people, but for the surrounding community in terms of what you are prepared to do in order to have this casino up and running.

But I think the Chairman’s concern, or the Chair’s concern, I think it’s all of our concern, and I think the question ought to be put, then, to the State representative.  And that is, that by this Compact, if it’s approved, we are giving to  Mr. Sarris and his people the ability to basically operate a casino, Class 3 casino; that is something that the State is going to give.  Then the question is that if in fact the casino does not perform, then what is the protection that you are laying out in the Compact that protects the interest of the State?  And I think that is the question I think Mr. Chairman was asking and I think I’m asking.

MR. APPELSMITH:  Well, the obligations to the State are relatively minimal in terms of finances because we’re really just getting revenue for the Special Distribution Fund and the Revenue Sharing Trust Fund.  If the Tribe reneges on its obligations, there are provisions in the Compact that would allow us to essentially close the casino and that is obviously an extreme result and not something we hope to ever come across.  But we do have the protection of the ability to shut them down if they are not living up to their responsibilities.

SENATOR YEE:  So let’s just say that the casino is open.  You have a lot of individuals coming in.  These individuals get into some difficulty with their behavior and so on.  It impacts the community.  And all of a sudden if it turns out that, you know, our only avenue is to just shut them down, and what about the problems that are created because of that?

MR. APPELSMITH:  It’s created by shutting them down?
SENATOR YEE:  It’s created by the fact that you have a lot of individuals now who are going to the casino and gambling and they have problems and they bring it back to their community and then what do we do with that?

MR. APPELSMITH:  That’s one of the reasons why we’re providing so much money to the city of Rohnert Park and the county of Sonoma to essentially deal with gambling addiction problems.  We also, of course, have concurrence, regulatory and criminal jurisdiction, both from state law enforcement and county and city law enforcement and the casino itself.
SENATOR YEE:  Alright.  Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Yes, Senator Wyland.

SENATOR MARK WYLAND:  On this issue of, I guess you’d call it, characterize it as sufficiency of profits, I want to go back to the basic economics, and I think it was beginning to be alluded to.  There’s obviously a risk in any business, but hasn’t this been thoroughly vetted as best can be by Stations Casino, which is making an incredibly big investment it was pointed out?  I would assume in a normal business operation if you really have a doubt, even though you’ve put that much money in, you walk away.  And I’m no expert in marketing or understanding how close this casino may be to potential customers, but I’m assuming from my general knowledge of the Bay Area that they’ve calculated that there would be a market sufficient to provide the money that we’re talking about.  Am I right?  Could you just comment on that?

MR. APPELSMITH:  Sure, Mr. Wyland.  There have, of course, been elaborate feasibility studies done, market projections done, both by Stations, by the Tribe, through even the EIS.  We ourselves have an economist at the Governor’s office, or we contract through at the Governor’s office, and financial analysts that we used to model all of this.  And the ultimate test is now the Tribe has to go out and sell bonds to finance the casino.  The casino bond market is a worldwide enterprise that is extremely sophisticated and they’re not going to sell bonds unless people are convinced that they’re going to get their money back.  And so, we’re not going to see a casino open in this situation, especially given the amount of money that they’ve already invested in it, that is going to be unsuccessful with any reasonable level of probability.

SENATOR WYLAND:  Now how many machines will you open with and how many are authorized again under the Compact?

MR. APPELSMITH:  I’ll let the Tribe answer with what their plans are, but it’s modeled at 3,000 and we anticipate they would open at 3,000.

SENATOR WYLAND:  At 3,000.  And before you go to that, about how much in bond revenue do you need to build the casino?  Do you have a projection of that?

MR. MAIER:  With the pre-development costs factored in, it’s somewhere between $800 million.

(Introduces Scott Nielson)  This is Scott Nielson from Station Casinos who’s heavily involved in this process right now.

MR. SCOTT NIELSON:  Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, Scott Nielson on behalf of Station Casinos.  The amount that we would raise would be somewhere between $700- and $750 million for this project in both bond and traditional financing, and that’s the amount that we would be looking for to go to the markets and raise.  
SENATOR WYLAND:  And the security for those bonds?

MR. NIELSON:  Basically, just like any other Native American project, Station Casinos’ money would stay in the project until the bond holders are paid.  We would receive payment, __________ pursuant with those bond holders.  But the only other securities that a Native American gaming project provides are the physical assets; you can’t take the property; you cannot take the building.
SENATOR WYLAND:  Right.  So the real value in that very sophisticated market, because it’s a very specialized market, the real security is the belief of those bond purchasers that it will generate the revenue necessary because the facilities themselves are not going to be enough … should that not occur, the facilities themselves aren’t enough security to cover the value of the bonds, right?  

MR. NIELSON:  That’s correct.  And what those lenders would do, would do a complete analysis of this facility, this market, and compare it and contrast it to existing facilities that they believe are comparable type properties, whether it’s Pechanga, Thunder Valley, Cache Creek, others; they look at all that and they make a decision; is this a credit worthy investment?  
SENATOR WYLAND:  And if I’m correct, those who underwrite those bonds are going to also do a very sophisticated analysis in addition to the actual purchasers in a market that’s got to be sophisticated because any of us who buy bonds aren’t going to buy something that is that specialized.  But they’re also going to do an analysis that takes this into account.

MR. NIELSON:  And much like Chairman Wright indicated, even if you discount what our projections are by 50 percent, they’ll do discounting like that to say how bad does this get and still be able to pay the bonds?  
And I should also add too, that the risk that these lenders would be taking would be risk ahead of what the State or the city or the county would be accepting, because the payments that we’re talking about going into the Great Mitigation Fund and going to the RSTF and so forth, they’re much … you can think of those similarly, not in Indian gaming land, but as a tax.  You have to pay your taxes first in business before you pay your bankers, before you pay your lenders, before you pay your partner, and so, all of those things would have a prior … those revenues that the Tribe will be sharing with local governments will have a priority over paying its debts and paying its lenders.  So the security that the locals receive, I think is very adequate.

SENATOR WYLAND:  I suspect what all that amounts to … I think it’s a very legitimate concern to make sure that there is sufficient funds for the mitigation and the rest of it.  But given the level of investment and sophistication it takes to do this, probably a lot of us who aren’t getting very much return, had we the opportunity, would love to invest in this.  That is not a big concern to me.  

And I just would like to say also, that I appreciate the creation of, and I’ve forgotten what you call it, but the fund, as I understand it, that would respond to applications from other tribes or groups, that on the basis of need.  I think that’s new.  I don’t know how their tribes feel about that.  But I know in my area there are a couple of tribes who are in a really difficult situation who don’t have the potential of being gaming tribes and I appreciate that being included because that goes beyond the local mitigation issue.
Thank you.
SENATOR WRIGHT:  Any other questions?  Senator Evans.
SENATOR NOREEN EVANS:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.  I do have a couple of questions that I’d like to explore with you.  First of all, there’s a lot to like here and I think we’ve kind of gone over a lot of that.  I particularly like the construction jobs, as well as the long-term jobs.  And I appreciate the years of effort that you’ve gone to in preparing the EIS and holding the public hearings and working with Rohnert Park and the county of Sonoma.  But my practice in every compact I’ve ever voted on, is to make sure that the local land use issues—because my background is a local official as you know—that those local land use issues are resolved prior to the time the Compact actually gets approved.  
And there’s some outstanding issues, as the Rohnert Park city manager mentioned, that I’d like to explore with you and find out, given all the effort that’s gone into this so far, why they haven’t been already worked out and committed to an MOU with, I think, it would be the county?  Because I think that’s the affected agency if I’m not wrong, and if I am wrong, please correct me.  But it’s primarily the freshwater impacts.  I know that I believe the casino will be on a well and the groundwater there is already to the point of subsidence, so there will be impacts there.  
And then the transportation issues; Highway 101, as we know, has been at level F for probably the last 30 years.  And even with the improvements, I know there will be additional impacts.  

And then the other issue is the sewage or waste water treatment issue.  The Santa Rosa sub-regional system, as we know, is highly impacted and has been for many, many years.  And even after we adopted the Geyser’s Project, we’re still impacted.  So my concern is what is going to happen with the waste water?
And again, it’s disturbing to me, and maybe you can address this issue, why an MOU has not been able to be reached with the county after you’ve done all of this work for many, many years trying to get to agreement with local agencies?

MR. MAIER:  Senator, I’ll take a shot at trying to answer all those questions.  With respect to groundwater use, one of the mitigation measures in the EIS is the Tribe shall use recycled water.  That recycled water would either come from its own waste water treatment plant or if the Tribe and the city entered into an agreement whereby the sewer is treated offsite, at the city’s and the Santa Rosa plant, then the Tribe would purchase recycled water from the city of Santa Rosa.  We’re exploring those options at this time and I do suspect that we will hopefully reach an agreement for city services, and also, we will have an agreement for a connection for recycled water.  

We are double plumbing the toilets in the facility.  That’s already been designed.  So the toilets will use recycled water.  The cooling towers, which are big water use, will use recycled water.  And the landscaping will use recycled water.  That will result in a significant reduction in the use of groundwater.

In the first phase we’re not planning to build a hotel, so the groundwater use that you’ll see out of this facility is not nearly as great as what was originally projected in some of the early EIS.  And the Tribe is doing, I think, everything possible.  In fact I don’t know of any other business in Sonoma County that’s done as much in terms of reducing its impact on the environment than this project.

With respect to land use:  As the Chairman indicated, the first location was not zoned for commercial use.  We moved a second time in consultation with local officials.  It turned out that that site that we optioned had the—the 360 acre site—had significant wetlands and it was in the 100-year floodplain.  We then moved and paid $90 million, $100 million for a site that was within the urban growth boundary of Rohnert Park which was being entitled at the time for mixed use and residential use.  It was going to be quite a large project.  And in fact, we looked at that carefully and when we learned about that project and also thought about doing something out on the other 360 acres, the two projects we didn’t think would work in that area; it was too much development.  So the fact that we displaced that development really was a huge boon to the overall land use in the city.

And then, we’ve been working with the city very closely.  In fact, the Tribe purchased 90 acres.  They only took about 68 acres of that.  The other 23 acres was Station Casino’s.  And one of its development arms has maintained that because the city was very interested in doing retail along that strip of, what was it? Redwood (audience member says Boulevard), and so there will be retail development.  So we’ve been working with the city on all these things.  And we’re also working to make sure that the casino development kind of merges in with the other things.  
I mean the Tribe ultimately wants to run a successful business.  We want to do everything possible to make sure that people get in and out of the facility.  That we have a comparable uses nearby so that there’s a synergy created.  And we really think this is going to help put Rohnert Park on the map.
The MOU with the county is we have the agreement to agree.  We’ve been working with the county.  I’m quite certain that we are going to reach an agreement with the county on the specific mitigation measures.  We’ve already discussed all the mitigation measures that are in the EIS will be included in the … that are within the county’s jurisdiction will be paid for through the county MOU plus lots of others.  I mean if you total the amount of mitigation that the EIS requires for the county jurisdiction, it’s one or two million dollars a year.  It’s not a specific number.  We’re going to be providing the county something like $5 million a year in the early years, and up to 20 to 30 in the later years, so there will be ample money for mitigation.  The Tribe has every interest to make sure that that money is used to mitigate project impacts, and then in addition, for charitable things like parks and other things that are important to the 1,300 members.  
MR. SARRIS:  Senator Evans, if I may say, one of the things too that John has not said, is that the county with this MOU do agree to agree; they were specifically waiting until this Compact is settled to negotiate.  So your question; we really can’t answer that because they are waiting until the Compact is done so that they can begin looking at the terms and then negotiating with us, and I think that’s important to understand.

SENATOR EVANS:  I appreciate that.  But unfortunately, usually it’s the reverse.  Usually we have the MOU with the county or the affected agency that’s already approved and then we’ll vote on the compact, and that’s been my position in every compact that’s come before me.  So it’s a little chicken-versus-before-the-egg here.

MR. MAIER:  We’ve offered to negotiate as far back as 2003, okay.  We had an offer on the table.  They decided that it was best to do as they do in any other development project which is prepare the EIS … I mean, have the environmental review done so they could fully understand the impacts.  

In the November 2004 MOU that we have, that process was to begin at the end of the EIS process once that was done.  The county requested, and the Tribe agreed, that we delay those negotiations until they felt it was an appropriate time.  And we are more than willing to negotiate this.  And I think … I will bet my hat that we will be able to reach an agreement.  I can’t imagine any county in the state of California walking away from an opportunity to get $20- to $30 million for things that … you know counties are hurting right now.  So I think it’s just a matter of the way things work in Sonoma County.  You’re familiar with it.  I’m familiar with it.  We’re all familiar with it.  So thank you.

UNIDENTIFIED:  And Senator, they can’t … clearly, they can’t break ground without an agreement with the county.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Anything further from this panel?  Mr. Chairman, thank you for you guys showing up.  Who has to carry all those binders back?  Oh, alright.  We’re just checking.  

What we’re going to do now … and I’m not sure … this would be your call Aaron and Mr. Chairman, if you want to keep someone here.  
Are there witnesses that want to testify on this project, this Compact?  Okay, we’re going to break this up in two parts.  First we’re going to take the witnesses in support and that will be followed by the witnesses in opposition.  
Why don’t we do this … 

Mr. Appelsmith, I might need you to stay.  

Other witnesses in support; why don’t you take the podium here.  Why don’t we get started Mr. Wetch.
MR. SCOTT WETCH:  Mr. Chairman and Members, Scott Wetch on behalf of the California State Association of Electrical Workers, the Western State’s Council of Sheet Metal Workers, the California State Pipe Trades Council, and the Elevator Constructors Union, here in strong support.

I happen to have grown up as a third generation Sebastopolian, just two miles from Graton.  I had the pleasure of growing up with many, many families who are members of the Graton Rancheria, so I followed the plight of these people for many, many years.  And I also grew up about approximately 10 miles from the proposed location of this facility.  
So I’m here to support this because, first of all, the construction industry in Sonoma County and in the entire North Bay is in, what must be described, as a state of depression.  We have 45 percent unemployment in the North Bay.  That was a market that was particularly driven in the last decade-and-a-half through residential construction and then the ancillary construction that would go to accommodate that residential construction, so for the last four years construction has been at a virtual standstill.  
My unions have invested an incredible amount of time and effort in this project at the local level in the planning process, and not only desperately want the jobs but feel that it’s a very sound project.

Being familiar with this location let me just tell you that I know that in the back of some minds they think Sonoma County, they think bucolic rolling hills, grapes, and that’s all there.  But in this particular location; this is located right at a major exchange.  It’s a retail and light industrial hub; there’s big box stores.  I can’t think of a location in Sonoma County that would be more suitable, more appropriate for this type of location, with making a minimal amount of impact on sort of the character of Sonoma County.  And so for all the above reasons, we would urge an aye vote today. 
Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Yes, ma’am.  

MS. DEANN BAKER:  Mr. Chair, Members of the Committee, DeAnn Baker, representing the California State Association of Counties.  I just want to mention that CSAC’s adopted policies serve to try and balance tribal sovereignty and the public’s interest.  And we’ve primarily focused on off-reservation impacts, both environmental and health and safety of the public.  And we do find that this Compact that’s proposed for ratification in AB 517 does take an important step in balancing those interests; both those of the Tribe’s as well as health and safety of the public and neighboring communities.  And we just want to express our appreciation to the Governor and the Tribe for working in a manner that does balance those interests.  And we actually hope that this serves as a template for future agreements.
Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Yes, ma’am.

MS. LISA MALDONADO:  Hi.  Yes.  Thank you, Chair.  My name is Lisa Maldonado.  I’m executive director of the North Bay Labor Council, which represents over 60,000 families, workers and their families in Sonoma, Marin, Lake, and Mendocino County.  We’re here to strongly, strongly support this and especially the Tribe, who have done such great work with us and with the building trades.

I want to wish you all Happy International Workers Day.  Today is the day that we celebrate the people who actually built our country and our state, and it’s an international holiday.

I’d like to ask some of the folks who support the Tribe and have come all the way from the area to stand up for a minute—Unite Here folks and the Operating Engineers—just to show that there is a huge amount of support and a huge need in our area.  We have an incredibly high unemployment rate and the attendant damage that goes with unemployment.  I was so gratified to hear you talking about consequences and mitigation, because that is important.  But what’s equally important, are the consequences of unemployment and high unemployment in our area; that’s foreclosures, divorces, suicides.  People are desperate when they don’t have work and can’t support their family.  
And what I think this is, is a high road jobs project and it’s a large jobs project—900 construction jobs, 2,000 union jobs in the resort.  This is huge for all of us.  And we are especially gratified that in an area where we have a Walmart, we have a Hooters, there’s an Applebee’s, there is a Target, instead of taking the low road and asking the residents and taxpayers to subsidize their workers’ health care with all of our community benefits, which are being stretched and stretched, Greg Sarris and the Tribe have taken the high road and have done the responsibility as the best possible kind of employers by paying a decent wage, making sure that their workers and families have health care and have a pension, have a decent job.  That’s what we want.  If anything, this is an example of the best kind of high road development.  And I only wish that places like Walmart, or Lowes, or Home Depot would be held to the same kind of strict standards because this is a true community benefit and it’s very important.  And I hope that you will definitely vote yes on this.  
Thank you.

MR. JACK RIBBON:  Mr. Chair and Members, my name is Jack Ribbon.  I represent Unite Here, the hotel and casino workers union.  We’ve just distributed a booklet to you that describes the emerging standard in the tribal gaming industry in California; a standard that we’re very proud of helping to build with partners like the Federated Indians of the Graton Rancheria.  The Tribe has agreed to in forcibly provide an opportunity for their workforce to be able to speak to their wages, benefits, and working conditions over time and as a result, we are very, very supportive of this project.  And, it will become another piece of the emerging standard in the tribal gaming industry that’s creating good jobs and benefits and a foundation for families to depend upon.

I want to introduce Carlos Brambia(?), who is a cook in the tribal gaming industry.  And his experience is one that we would really like you to understand.  This is an experience for one individual that will be multiplied 2,000 times if you approve this project in the Rohnert Park area.

Thank you.

MR. CARLOS LOPEZ BRAMBIA(?):  Okay, well, thanks, Jack.  My name is Carlos Lopez Brambia(?).  I have been working in the food industry for 12 years.  In the first nine years I worked in the non-union bargaining place where I struggled to support my family and this is because I, you know, my wage froze and I had many difficulties doing that because of that.  I also had an accident where I couldn’t … going into it, I had no health insurance and that provided, you know, less income for me too.  So what I was going to say?  Later after that, my job got terminated.  
Now I work at _______ Casino where I’m currently … I work there.  I have many great benefits that include low cost affordable health insurance, paid time off.  And for the first time in my life, I can say that I can finally support my family because of the great union contract that I have.

I appreciate it.  Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.

MR. BARRY BROAD:  Mr. Chair and Members, Barry Broad on behalf of the Teamsters.  We actually represent people in the construction industry.  We also represent people on the operation side of the hotel industry, including in tribal casinos in California.  

We support this project wholeheartedly for all the reasons.  I think having worked on many of these compacts over the years, this Tribe in particular, has worked very, very hard to be a partner with the community and they have been very sensitive to the community.  And, they have, in a sense, paid a price for that because it’s taken a very long time for them to put this together, but they’ve done it the right way and they deserve your support.

MR. CHRIS SNYDER:  Hi.  My name is Chris Snyder.  I’m with the Operating Engineers and I represent over 2,000 members in North Bay.  Before I speak to the project I would like to just digress for a little bit.  When Greg was talking, I was looking at this mural up here; some things were going through my head.  

I’m from Minnesota.  I was born and raised there and I think my great-grandparents were homesteaders in Iowa and Minnesota.  And so, you know, there’s a lot of pride in the heritage we brought back, being like German settlers coming into the Midwest back in 1800s.  
And when I grew up in Minnesota I went to high school.  And the great seal of Minnesota, on it, it has an Indian riding into the sunset and a white farmer plowing the land and we were always told it was representing, you know, the settlers coming and taking stewardship of the land and the Indians are … the implication being, going into the sunset.  But there’s no real Indian problem anymore or anything like that.  And next to the farmer is his gun and he’s laid down his weapon and now he’s taking stewardship of the land.  And you know when I grew up, later on in life I had a son and he’s sixteenth Chippewa …
SENATOR WRIGHT:  Let me get you back to the …

MR. BROAD:  I just want to say that I think that this is an opportunity for a lot of people to come together because there’s this tapestry up here and everything and there’s a lot of history here, and it’s not just this project.  This is an opportunity for people to be given back something and they’ve done it in such a way that’s going to allow us to put workers back to work in my union; it’s going to allow … I got 12 guys back here.  Can you guys stand up with the operating engineers that came up?  And this is a partnership.  This is all of us in the North Bay coming together around something where it’s going to put people back to work and they’re going to do it in a way that’s environmentally sensitive and brings a higher standard of living.  And it’s going to give people something back.
In this agreement with labor, I have a guy, James Merimen(?), can you raise your hand?  He’s done two tours.  He’s been in Afghanistan and Iraq.  And this contract we have them, there’s Helmets to Hard Hats which is … we’re taking our men and women that have been fighting overseas and we’re putting them through our apprenticeship program and on this project they’re going to be working through that and that’s just one aspect of this project.  

So please, I’d urge a yes vote on this.  Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Ma’am, you were next.

MS. SUSAN MOORE:  My name is Susan Moore.  And I have a large women’s group, networking group, in Sonoma County.  There’s 400 women in it; pretty much the leadership of all nine cities.  I am on the Geyser Board for Pediatric Dental Initiative, president of the Brady Campaign, point person for fundraising for ________ University Prep.  I have been working with the Tribe for, I think, now 12 years.  This Tribe is a model for the nation, not just for California.
One thing that hasn’t been mentioned I think is that there’s going to be about 1,800 trickle down jobs that will come that are not going to be union.  So it’s not just going to be union jobs that are going to be created, but it’s going to be numerous other jobs for people to have a far better wage than they have right now.

And so, I urge you to vote for this.  I think it’s going to be well implemented.  And I think we can come up with something so original in Sonoma County that we will actually be the model for the country. 

Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.  Go ahead, sir.

MR. KENNETH BOGGS:  Yes, my name is Kenneth Boggs.  I am a resident of Sonoma County.  I live in very close proximity to the site that they want to build on.  I believe that it is a good opportunity for Sonoma County to grow.  I’m not really concerned too much with the growth, you know, the traffic problems and stuff.  I believe that it will all be taken care of as we move along.  I’ve been struggling for many years to raise a family within a few miles of this project.  I’m looking forward to it.  

I’m also a member of Operating Engineers.  

And I want to thank you for your time.  Thank you very much.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.  Yes, sir.

MR. CARL SANCHEZ:  Yes, thank you, Chairman Wright.  My name is Carl Sanchez.  I’m a business representative with Sheet Metal Workers Local 104.  I’m vice president of the Sonoma Lake Mendocino Building Trades Council.

Over the last four years, as has been noted, I’ve received countless phone calls from frantic workers who couldn’t find work; their spouses calling me asking me where their husbands could find work.  They couldn’t find work anywhere in the Bay Area for the last four years, let alone in Sonoma County.  They’ve lost their health coverage, lost their homes, and many just lost hope.  This project helps to restore a bit of that hope for many.

As our research has indicated, in talking with other locals who do casino projects all over the country that this particular project alone will put close to 100 sheet metal workers back to work in an industry that’s been all but decimated by this economic downturn.

We urge you for a yes vote.  Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Yes, sir.

MR. GARY CORTIS:  I’m Gary Cortis.  I’m with Sheet Metal Workers Local 104, a business development representative.  I do the communications at the local.  

And what you hold here in your hands is the opportunity for great economic recovery.  You heard Scott Wetch earlier mention we’ve had 45 percent unemployment in our area.  And not only would it put people to work at the casino and on the construction project, but the neighboring businesses, local small businesses, community services, and eventually it may even have some positive influence on the housing market up there.  When people can buy again and when there’s demand, we know that perhaps the price will begin to go in the right direction.

As far as traffic congestion; they’ve just widened that entire corridor up and down 101.  I don’t know if you’ve seen any updates on that project, but it’s gone from two lanes to three and in some cases four, so they’ve already mitigated the traffic throughout Rohnert Park and north and south of there as well.

So please consider the economic recovery that we need; the jobs not only for the casino, for the project, but also for the neighboring communities.

Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.

MR. JOE CRUZ:  Mr. Chair, Members, Joe Cruz on behalf of the State Council of Laborers.  I too want to echo some of what’s been shared on the job creation economic benefit side.  I represent the laborers who I think some folks have alluded to.  We have a 40 percent unemployment rate in Sonoma County.  Since 2008, the construction industry in whole has lost 2,200 jobs.  
I believe the Graton Federation of Indians have raised the bar in developing a tribal compact throughout the state.  They have done a great job in preparing this.  And the 900 immediate jobs is a boon to our industry, which is hemorrhaging in Sonoma County.  A one dollar invested in infrastructure generates $5 in economic benefit, and that’s the whole regional benefit in the short term and the long term.  

We urge your support.

MS. CAITLYN VEGA:  Mr. Chair and Members, Caitlyn Vega for the California Labor Federation.  This is the kind of project that we are truly proud to support.  This is a Tribe that has chosen to recognize workers’ rights, to provide good jobs for this community, and we think that this is exactly the sort of development that makes sense for revitalizing our communities and setting a new standard.

So we’re here in strong support.

MR. GEORGE NAIL:  Mr. Chairman, Members, my name is George Nail.  I live in Sonoma County.  I grew up in Sacramento over in Del Paso Heights.  I used to travel as a truck driver.  I don’t know how much you guys get out and around because your day is probably fairly full here, but in my area, I just noted standard structures who made laminated beams to support building industry is gone.  We have rock quarries that are empty; not of rocks, but of workers.  I’m one of those workers and I’m a voter.  So without making any threats or anything, I feel it’s important (laughter from audience) … stop that … I feel it’s important for everyone to remember here, that this is a republic.  
Our elected officials are elected by a majority of the voting people and once we elect someone, we get busy with our lives when we have a job.  If I had a job, I wouldn’t be here today.  So I’m not begging for a job, but I would like to see responsible development and utilization of our resources.  And when the minority can control the lives of the majority and everyone that’s involved with it, and have the impact of the spotted owl and salmon and a bunch of other things that are endangered, I feel like I’m one of those species right now because I’m a worker.
There’s so much to say and so little time to do it here.  But I know in terms of the spotted owl, I just read in our local newspaper about six weeks ago, Fish and Game is actually looking at eliminating another species in our area that moved out here from the East Coast called the barred owl.  They’re interacting with the spotted owls and creating a sparred owl.  So the spotted owl is becoming extinct from its activities.  Maybe that’s part of the bigger plan.  But as we travel around, we see more and more businesses disappearing, and without industry, we’re all going to disappear.  No one will have a job.  
So I encourage you folks to do the right thing; apply everything your committees and, golly, I don’t know what to call it, staff, that look at all these issues and when the committee that makes recommendations say, “Yes, this is a good idea, let’s do it;” please listen to them and put a balance in here so that we don’t lose industry after industry and thousands and thousands of jobs.

I used to be in logging.  I’m not anymore.  I’m darn near out of gravel.  And I’m one of the skilled guys.  I have the ability to …

SENATOR WRIGHT:  You’re darn near out of time too.

MR. NAIL:  That’s okay.  I’m going to use it all unless I’m out now.  I’ll say thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Go ahead, sir.  I’m sorry.

MR. NAIL:  But I’m trying to use those skills to maintain the infrastructure of our state that our parents and grandparents built, and it’s in terrible need of repair now. 

So please, put some balance in here.  Do the right thing for everyone.  And I would very much appreciate it.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.

MR. NAIL:  Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Okay.  I know there were witnesses in opposition; if they would come forward at this time.  While they’re coming forward let me … the idea I think, and where we all have to be careful, those of us in … witnesses in opposition, there are four chairs here.
UNIDENTIFIED:  Can I stand here?

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Yes, ma’am.  You stay there.  I’m trying to fill it up for purposes of just speed of getting it done.

UNIDENTIFIED:  Okay.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  What I was going to say is we have to be careful in government where we’re looking at casinos or things where there is gambling, because at a certain level it’s a zero sum often with gaming.  Vegas brings in people to that area who gamble, so it’s California or other area’s money going into Vegas, so for them it’s a net plus.  Often in gaming interests that we have, it’s not a net plus because that money is going to come from something else that was going on.  It is an entertainment value and I recognize that.  But I want to make clear that we didn’t create a whole lot of revenue because you built a casino; what you did is you took money that was going to something else and you shifted it to the casino.  But every dollar that, for example, is currently being spent in Rohnert Park is being spent on something, whatever something is.  Whether it is football or a movie or something, this shifts that.  That’s not necessarily bad but I think we have to be careful when we’re discussing this in terms of generating new revenue. 
The discussion that I was making earlier relative to the projections and some of the things that I saw, you know, again, all of that assumes that you’re going to generate revenue from the immediate area around Rohnert Park.  And you know, there’s a term that’s used often in war called “collateral damage.”  That means that there will be some things that will lose money that were previously getting money.  There will be some people who may take money out of the bank and spend it.  But gaming has a downside that this Committee recognizes, so it’s not all on the up side.  But you know, aside from that, the tribal governments and IGRA and all of the history that goes with that, there’s a right that we have in this state to provide for gaming to tribes and there’s a process that’s been followed.  So I recognize that.  But I’m always just a little bit skeptical when I hear of all of the great things that are going to occur because there are some downsides and I’m sure we’ll hear some of those now.

Sir, you can take a seat over here.  In fact, ma’am, you can …
UNIDENTIFIED:  He wants you to move up one seat.

UNIDENTIFIED:  I can stand, sir.  I’m comfortable.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Okay.  But I’m not doing it for your comfort; I’m just trying to expedite how quickly we get through the process.  So some of the people who … sir, you with the _________ .  Why don’t we start, ma’am, with you at the podium?

MS. DAWNA GALLAGHER:  Okay.  Thank you so much for actually letting a lot of the people give their full time to this discussion.

I come before you now … my name is Dawna Gallagher.  I’m a former city council person of the city of Rohnert Park and currently I sit on the Santa Rosa Basin Plain Groundwater Committee in accordance with AB 3030.  We have started our process three years now with trying to figure out what groundwater we have in order to sustain it long term.  
The most important thing I could say in this meeting right now is there is no way to mitigate no water.  There isn’t.  There’s not making any more.  And so, there is an important element here; if there’s no water, there’s no jobs, so the promise of jobs go out the wall.  Let me tell you what I mean:  There’s a thing called temporary damage with water and that would be like a drought, something you could fix.  But when you put in water … when you pull water out of a well too fast—It’s called over-drafting and mining—if you do that fast enough, you have land subsidence.  Just ask San Joaquin Valley—25-feet drop.  

Rohnert Park just had the U.S. … not long ago, USGS—a report that’s coming out actually this year—it’s a 5-year study—but prior to that, they examined the area that the casino was about to go in.  That’s actually the bottom of the bowl.  The watershed goes from Windsor to Petaluma and the hills to Sebastopol.  Rohnert Park is the bottom of the bowl.  You cannot physically hydrologically put in two 600-foot wells and start them pumping.  With an estimated amount of sewage capacity that’s going to come out of that, which is 500,000 per day gallons of sewage.  Very important things you have to use here.  You know, all the jobs and everything are important, but this is going to end jobs.  Rohnert Park currently has 40 percent empty commercial and industrial space right now and that will even get worse if there’s no water.  So currently, Rohnert Park is sinking 13 millimeters per year.  We already have land subsidence.  

Thank you all that are here.  I gave packets to you.  I know you saw the colored map I showed you.  

And with all due respect to the Indians that are here, I am 25 percent Cherokee and I do respect the Indians that are here.  And I think all of us would like to have water into the future.

Once this Compact is signed, there is really, because of the sovereign water rights of the Indians, they can’t … their super water rights, they can pump it as fast as they want and sell it.  Do you know what their solution is for that in their EIS?  Trucking in water.  Okay, will that be from Canada or Alaska?  Glaciers?  There is no more there.  
Currently in Rohnert Park there is a 1,600 home project to the east of the proposed casino that has ceased to be able to go in.  Talk about construction jobs.  It can’t go in because it cannot drill anymore new wells.  It’s been waiting as long as the casino.  Just to the south of that, there’s a project that’s been there over 20 years and they want to expand and they cannot use any more water from the Santa Rosa … from the Sonoma County Water Agency.  They can’t get any more allocated water from Rohnert Park because Sonoma County Water Agency, our water that comes from the Russian River, we’ve all been asked to cut back 20 percent.  All the cities in this basin have complied.  Rohnert Park’s mayor has admitted that they relied more on their well pumping in order to conserve.  Well, that’s not conservation.  So Rohnert Park has gone in the past 20 years from having 41 wells to 29 wells while their population increased.  That’s called over-draft.  That’s called mining.  That is the end of the bowl.  That’s mining the bottom of the bowl.
A half a mile from this project there are agriculture … right within this … on the west side, there are several of the well owners that are here today.  If you start mining 600-foot wells, their wells are 20, 30, 130 feet; they’re all shier than that in the bowl.  This will take the water out of the aquifer.  It’s not an idle threat; it is hydrology.  It is a fact.  

And as you mentioned externalities to the balance scheme of when you make all these promises; the Stations Casino … speaking of promises … has promised the city council … so you’ll notice that the city council currently from Rohnert Park is not here because they signed over their rejection to this project because they were paid a lot of money.  Well, I looked that up in the dictionary; that’s called a “bribe” and I am not afraid to tell you what that is because I looked it up before I said it.  That would be a bribe if I was sitting there now.

And if you’ll notice, there’s 69 casinos in the state of California.  Have you noticed that that hasn’t … we have not been able to gamble our way out of this depression/recession that we’re in?  It hasn’t really worked as a stimulus to our economy.  

And in closing, what I’m requesting is that we table or vote no on this Compact until all the nice things that were said about working out sewage and water are done first.  If you will realize the sovereign rights, once you sign the Compact they can do whatever they want to do.  They do not have to do any of these things.  And the county needs to be negotiated with first on water and sewer because there is no more capacity in our sewage treatment plant and there is no more water to give to them.

Thank you very much for your time.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.  Ma’am.

MS. ELAINE RICHTER:  My name is Elaine Richter.  I’m a vet of World War II.  I’m wearing this cap as I always do on Tuesdays when I help other vets get the benefits they need in Santa Rosa.  I’m a lifelong Democrat.  I’m a great grandma.  And I was born in 1923 in Berkeley.  Yes, I’m 88½.  I’m a graduate of the University of California, Berkeley.  I was a Poli-Sci major.  And I know my civil rights are being violated insofar as the due process clause of the Constitution is concerned.  I have not had time to prepare points to debate the merits of this Compact as it is being rushed through here on a gut and amend of AB 517.  Those are nasty words.  I hope they’re making the impact on you that I intend.

I live in Rohnert Park where there is Sonoma State University with 4,000 students.  There are also five mobile home parks.  The temptations of gambling are entirely too close, I feel sure, as both groups are known to live on tight budgets.  We would not want to see the temptation of gambling away the rent money or the food money would we?  So if mitigations are arranged, I believe it would be like arranging the deck chairs on the Titanic; there will be a catastrophe ahead.

The main problem I see is the proximity to the number of people in the area.  This casino backs right up to Rohnert Park where the university is located.  If you didn’t get that, please get it now.  

This project brings to mind the story of the camel that stuck his nose under the tent.  Pretty soon the whole camel resided under the tent.  

We Californians voted to allow the Indian gaming, believing that it would be done in areas not heavily populated.  But this project, located where it is, would be the largest employer in the county; did you know that?  

We need to slow down and take into account the negative feelings of the Rohnert Park residents expressed in a recent poll that Mr. Healy will be telling you about.

Thank you very much.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.  We’ll move to this side.

MR. TRENT SMITH:  Thank you, Mr. Chair and Members.  Trent Smith representing Artichoke Joe’s Card Room, which is a family owned card room in San Bruno near the San Francisco Airport.  We’re opposed to this particular Compact because we view it as the first Class 3 gambling casino in the Greater Bay Area.  Now what impact will that have on Artichoke Joe’s?  Well, we don’t know.  It’s hard to tell at this point.  But when you’re in business the uncertainty can be quite a scary thing.
We’re more concerned about the precedent of this particular compact, and we respect the comments of Mr. Appelsmith, that this is a unique compact and every one will be looked at differently and we certainly hope that will be the case.  Because being the first Class 3 casino in the Greater Bay Area, we’re concerned on where is it going to come next.  Just in the last ten years we’ve seen tribal proposals: two in Richmond, one in Gilroy, one in Alameda.  I even have an article of tribes exploring the possibility of putting casinos on Treasure Island and Hunter’s Point.  And so, when those start happening, we’re very, very concerned.  And the economic impact that that will have on the Bay Area and Artichoke Joe’s and other businesses will be significant.
Following up on the previous comments by the previous witness about when voters passed Prop 1A and they approved tribal gaming there were people who were supporting that proposal that assured voters that it would not be in the urban areas close to population centers.  We think this will start the arms race to see who can get a casino closer than this one to the urban core of San Francisco.  At that point, we’ll be right back here again asking the Governor and the Legislature to please reject that.
And again, we hope that the Governor is serious that this is a unique situation, because we can guarantee that there will be another tribe looking to get closer than this one for the urban core and that’s not what we believe voters had in mind and it certainly would be bad news for businesses like Artichoke Joe’s and many, many others.

So for that reason, we are opposed.  Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Go ahead.
REV. JAMES BUTLER:  Thank you, Senator.  Reverend James Butler from the California Coalition Against Gambling Expansion.  Very briefly, we oppose this on three basic reasons.

One, it’s another example of the expansion of gambling in California.  And as you had pointed out, this type of economic enterprise simply transfers that discretionary dollar from one place to another; it does not necessarily create a new and stronger economic environment.  And there are the consequences, negative consequences, associated with the gambling interests that range from welfare, unemployment, bankruptcies, and increases in crimes.  So we do oppose it for that expansion element.

We also have concerns at what is sometimes referred to as reservation shopping; where land that heretofore did not belong to a tribe is purchased by the tribe, placed in trust, and then a casino is placed upon it.  And sometimes, and this is another one of our concerns, in a more urbanized setting, as has been pointed out when Propositions 5 and 1A were passed, there were tribes in California that pledged that the passage of those propositions would not result in the proliferation of urban gaming but would be confined to a tribe’s existing reservation land.  It is that context in which those propositions were passed.  And I think that this Compact violates those expectations and intentions.  So on the areas of expansion in general, the reservation shopping quality and the urbanization, we hope that you will not support this compact.
Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.  Sir.

MR. ROBERT O’DELL:  Thank you for the opportunity to speak.  My name is Robert O’Dell.  And I’m going to be part of this collateral damage.  I live in unincorporated Sonoma County and I live at ground zero.  I live less than a thousand yards from where this casino site is located.  And what I see, it’s like a tsunami coming.  I see no way for me to get out of the way of this thing.  It’s a monster.  
I am self-employed.  I work 16 hours a day.  I depend on less than $30,000 a year, like a lot of other people living in this area.  There are a lot of people like me that are going to be forced out of their houses because of a casino.  
And I can only speak from my heart on this.  I don’t have a speech.  But I’ve been listening to this all morning and I can’t get my head around these numbers that are being thrown around here—millions of dollars thrown at impacts and I can’t relate to that.  What I can relate to is my reality is going to be one where I’m going to be fighting traffic.  I didn’t realize this until earlier; that no money is going to be coming for years to offset the impacts.  I can’t live here another seven years for any help along the way.  
And I’m not really represented in this process.  I live in unincorporated Sonoma County.  Rohnert Park made decisions about this Compact.  I had no part of that process.  I couldn’t vote.  I’ve gone to the supervisor.  He says it’s basically a done deal.  I feel helpless.  And I’m angry and upset.  I can’t believe what’s happening.  To me, it’s insane.  There’s people who are going to lose their residences, their livelihoods.
That’s all.  Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.

MR. FRANK BUMGARDNER:  Thank you, Chairman Wright, for this opportunity to speak.  I appreciate all the members on the Senate Committee.  And first let me say, my name is Frank Bumgardner.  I’m a resident, as Bob is, of Sonoma County.  And I’m here to simply represent the people of Sonoma County who cannot be here today and who have no idea of the gravity, the damage that’s going to be done to them.  And I’m asking and pleading that the Legislature think twice before you approve this monster casino.  Three thousand slot machines.  I mean, my God, how many is enough?  How many more do you need?  Four?  Five?  
I mean, when you stood up before us in …

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Excuse me, sir …

MR. BUMGARDNER:  I’m sorry.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  It’s alright.  I appreciate your comments but it’s not an exchange, so you’re speaking to the Committee, okay?
MR. BUMGARDNER:  Oh, I’m sorry.  One other point:  I wanted to ask if it’s possible for me to ask Mr. Appelsmith a question.  He stated in his summary, I believe presenting this project, that there would be a review, an audit, on a rotating basis.  I’m sorry, I don’t understand that.  Is that some language that you speak in Sacramento?

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Time-out.  Mr. Appelsmith, he’s referring to … when you were discussing the audits I believe you were referring to the rotating audits that you do on the existing casinos as opposed to this casino, but why don’t you address the audit portion of his question?
MR. APPELSMITH:  So the Tribe has auditors, they’re independent auditors, and they report to the State what the casino’s revenues are.  The State has its own auditors by which it goes and it verifies that the information provided to it is accurate.  The Gambling Control Commission is the one who does those audits and they do it on a rotating basis.  And by that, I mean that they’re not there every day of the week but they have a schedule by which they audit the casinos that pay the State based upon the wins that the casino has.
MR. BUMGARDNER:  Okay, thank you, sir.  I would only suggest that maybe if the State is looking for revenue, maybe they ought to go to Apple.

One other point directed to the Tribe, and I’ve spent ten years of my life researching the genocide that was done in California.  Two books are out.  But I was at the meeting at Hamilton Field, and perhaps you were there too, Mr. Sarris.  And I know you made a pledge to the people who were going to write letters in your support to get your tribal status back, that you were not going to—this was said several times in my memory—maybe I’m wrong—that you were not going into gaming.  Is that correct?
SENATOR WRIGHT:  Wait a minute.  Time-out again.  Here’s how we do this:  you get to make your comments and you address the Chair and then the Chair would go back … because you raised a question of Mr. Appelsmith on a point.  But you’re opposed and I’m not trying to change your mind, but you should do better just to make your points of opposition and make them clear and that’s fine.  I’m not trying to rush you, but we don’t do an exchange here; that’s the point I’m making.

MR. BUMGARDNER:  I’m sorry.  I just have one more comment.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  That’s okay.  And you don’t do this every day and I recognize that.

MR. BUMGARDNER:  You got that right.  I think it was a famous writer, Thomas Paine, perhaps, that said, “The only thing that must happen for evil to triumph over good, is for good men to do nothing,” and that’s why I’m here today, alright; no other reason. 
And I appreciate your time.  Thank you very much.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you, sir.  Ma’am, you were standing before and kind of got pushed back so why don’t you take the podium there.

MS. LISA CATALONI:  My name is Lisa Cataloni.  I’m a resident of Rohnert Park who is very much against the casino.  I voted no on Proposition 1A because I knew it was going to open up a can of worms.  The proposition was supposed to be casinos on tribal land, but now any Native American can say any land is tribal land.  And so, having a casino in Rohnert Park will create more crime; it will cost Rohnert Park more money.  And Rohnert Park is not going to get the money; it will go to Station Casinos.  

And I work in the court system and gambling breaks up families; it’s going to clog up the system that’s already clogged enough as it is right now.  

So what I suggest: is people to go to college and get a degree.  

And I totally urge people to reject AB 517.  Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.  Let me reiterate again that in our committee today, this is what we call an informational hearing, so we won’t be conducting a vote.  The vote in the Senate will take place on the Senate Floor and there, the members of the Senate will debate the pros and cons.  But we did want to get all the information about the Compact on the record here today.  So when we leave and there’s no vote, I don’t want anyone to be surprised and think that we just ran out.  I said it at the outset, but I want to repeat that again.

I’m going to go to this side.

MS. CATALONI:  Thank you.
MR. MIKE HEALY:  Mr. Chair, Senators, my name is Mike Healy.  I’m in my third term on the Petaluma City Council.  And I wanted to make three points here today if I could.

First of all, we wanted to take the pulse of the community so we conducted an automatic automated telephone poll this past weekend in the communities most immediately affected by this proposed casino:  so Rohnert Park, Penngrove, Southwest Santa Rosa, and Petaluma, and as I expected, the results were overwhelmingly and profoundly against this casino and against this Compact.  We got 68 percent opposition, 16 percent support—that’s a 4 to 1 ratio.  That’s quite consistent with results we had in Petaluma in 2006 when we had an advisory measure on the ballot for a different casino site but a similarly sized one right next to Petaluma.  And I’ll circle back and talk about that one in a moment.  But that one came out at 79 percent opposed, 21 percent in favor, so approximately a 3 to 1 ratio against that other mega casino that was proposed at the time.  And I just wanted to point that out because there has been this attempt to show great public support for this casino in the region and those of us who are on the ground just don’t believe it for a second.

The second thing … and my community, we’re several miles away from the proposed casino site so some of the most profound impacts don’t hit us.  And I’ll leave aside the water issue because other folks have talked about that.  But the one issue, aside from water, that most profoundly affects us is freeway traffic on Highway 101.  And as you may know, there have been hundreds of millions of dollars of improvements on Highway 101 in Sonoma and Marin Counties that have been completed or now under construction.  There’s about $700 million worth of work yet to be done and is still unfunded in order to complete the highway widening all the way through the corridor. 
And I have to say with all due respect, that the treatment of this issue and the Compact before you is really totally inadequate; it’s tentative; it’s conditional; it’s uncertain.  
And I realize that on page-82, there’s a process that’s laid out and it starts by saying, “If there’s an impact on the highway …”  Well, with all due respect, we know perfectly well there’s an impact on the highway and it’s a profound impact.  And the EIS for the casino says it’s going to create 10 percent additional traffic on the 101 Corridor in Petaluma, which is seven miles away from the casino.  That was assuming 2,000 slot machines; now that we’ve got 3,000 slot machines, you’re talking about a 15 percent impact on the Highway 101 corridor and there’s just nothing specific about it.  It’s just a very tentative weak process that’s being setup in the Compact.

I would have much more faith if there were actual numbers in there that have been negotiated and been agreed to, but that’s just not there.  And I would suggest to you that the reason why that is and why that isn’t is there, is because if you’re talking 10 percent or 15 percent of a billion dollars, you’re talking about a number that this project just can’t hit, so there’s just no possible way on God’s green earth that this thing is going to actually pay for its full fair share of impacts on the Highway 101 corridor.

And the last point I wanted to make:  Mr. Chairman, you made a very good question earlier about revenue projections and the uncertainty of these projections and I just wanted to make one specific point on that because this point hasn’t been brought up earlier.  But this particular casino poses a mortal threat to an existing Indian casino further north in Sonoma County and that’s the Dry Creek Band’s River Rock Casino up near Geyserville, which is about half the size of the proposed casino that is set forth in AB 517.  But when this Rohnert Park site was first proposed, the Dry Creek Band went and purchased a ranch at the south end of Petaluma.  It’s several hundred acres.  It’s ten miles closer to the Bay Area.  And they took some initial steps to take that property into trust and that’s been in abeyance.  But you can fully expect that that process could come back to life and that there will be an effort to plant a mega casino at the south end of Petaluma, 10 miles closer to the Bay Area, and suck the oxygen out of this casino. 
And as one of the previous speakers mentioned, you know you have this leap frogging thing going on and it’s a zero sum game.  So the revenue projections are enormously uncertain just because you don’t know the competitive response that other casinos will make.

And with that, I’ll stop.  And I thank you for your time.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.  Yes, ma’am.

MS. SELENA POLSTEN:  Hello.  My name is Selena Polsten.  I live on an organic farm, three acre farm, that’s one-and-half miles directly across the Laguna from where the proposed site is.  There was a lot of discussion at the beginning, talking about what an ideal site this is; that when you look you see Walmart and Home Depot, and all of these other businesses.  That’s when you look to the east.  If you make a 180 degree … if you stay exactly in place and you take a 180-degree turn, this is what you see:  You see rolling hills, you see small farms one after the other, organic small farms, family farms, and you see residences.  That’s where they want to put this casino.  The casino is very ill-placed.  Not only as far as the impacts on the environment and the wetlands I look at … every day there are thousands of birds that migrate there; there’s vernal pools.  

Why I’m coming here today and why I got up at six in the morning and drove out here is because I’m very concerned; we have a 180-foot well.  Our next door neighbor has a 60-foot well.  On the other side of me they have 90-foot well.  All of us are deeply concerned that we are going to run out of water.  As I said, we are organic farmers.  We need water for our livelihood.  We need water for our family use.  We have two children.  And I see that in the Compact there is no assurances whatsoever that our water won’t be affected.  Right now, we’re at 12 gallons per minute.  If that goes down and we have to use … right now we pay about $200 a month to PG&E in order to pump that water.  I don’t believe that there’s any assurances that there will be any type of response to the people that are going to suffer for this.

You talked about groundwater monitoring as part of the Compact.  I want to know what is the recourse if it’s found out that people like myself here, immediate neighbors, find out that they either have a lot less water, or God forbid, we have no water.  If we have no water we cannot live there.  

So I’d like to know from the folks here today that are proposing the casino; what will happen?  What is the recourse for your direct neighbors?  We already heard a pretty eloquent description of the serious water constraints that there are now.  You’re sticking a straw 600 feet down into the ground sucking up all the water; what’s going to happen when there’s no water?

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Let me again say; the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors has not yet signed on.  Much of what you’re describing is going to be done in that part of the negotiation.  The document that we have here is not something that we’re able to amend.  But the water rights, watershed, those issues are still to be determined by the Sonoma County, which has not yet signed on to the Compact.  So I say that to say that this is not the last hearing that will take place on this.  

And as you might have heard earlier, it does not go forward until there is an agreement between the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors and the Tribe relative to some of the issues that you raised.

MS. POLSTEN:  If I could actually ask a question if there’s a chance for anybody to respond because Representative Evans brought up that this is not usually the way things are done, you know; that first you figure out all of these very complicated issues.  And there is the chance … I don’t have total faith that the Rohnert Park City Council, because they certainly weren’t working in my best interest, I have no vote on that.  I’m in an unincorporated … but yet, closer to the site than a lot of people who live in Rohnert Park are.  I have no vote.  I don’t know what the board of supervisors is going to agree.  But I would like to hear directly from the folks that are here; people like me, because, there’s hundreds of people like me that live within a mile, two miles, and we all share the same water table as them.  We’ve been there for years; we farm there.  We’d like to know what will happen as a result when folks that are monitoring the water situation, if they find, you know, we prove from our baseline that our water has been reduced drastically, what is the next step?  And is there going to be money to remediate that?  And sometimes as was mentioned, you can’t bring water where there is no water.  If it’s sucked dry, then we have to leave.  We have nowhere to live.  So if somebody could respond to me, I’d really appreciate it.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  You know, I would …

MR. MAIER:  Mr. Chairman, I’d like to just clarify something.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Okay, just say your name again.

MR. MAIER:  Yes.  John Maier, attorney for the Tribe.  The mitigation measures identified in the Record of Decision are legally enforceable measures.  The Tribe wanted to answer the question about wells running dry in the nearby neighborhood wells.  There is a mitigation measure where baseline studies will be conducted of all neighborhood wells and there will be an implementation program such that if those wells do go down and you have to dig them deeper to get the water, the Tribe, through those mitigation measures, will be paying for those.  What the only thing that the county agreement will do is, those mitigation measures have already been decided.  The Tribe has to implement those.  The only question is, is in areas where the Tribe does not exercise jurisdiction over those mitigation measures, there has to be a cooperating … the jurisdiction where those measures take place has to agree to assist in the mitigation of those.  The well program will most likely be a third-party contractor.  We’ve talked to the county about that.  And there will be a mitigation program for that.  But it’s very important to understand; the mitigation measures have already been decided.  There are hundreds of them in the Record of Decision.  The only thing that needs to be decided by the county is will they agree to implement those that the Tribe can’t, such as a signal on Stoney Point Road or something like that.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Well, I don’t want to presume what the county can and can’t do; that’s not my place.  But the challenge you have in part, is that if the county doesn’t agree, you ain’t building nothing.  So I just want to make clear, I mean, what’s been decided, what gets done, there’s still a need to negotiate an agreement with the county.  And again, I don’t want to presume for the county what they’re negotiation points are; that’s not my place.  
At this juncture what we look at—and Mr. Appelsmith represents the Governor—we look at those issues that are state issues that pertain, the issues relative to Rohnert Park, Sonoma County, some of the other environmental, particularly those things that are local, are things will happen not here, but they’ll happen in that context.  I trust that Sonoma County, which has probably negotiated at least as I’m able to tell, half-a-dozen or so compacts in the past, what, 20 years?  How many are in Sonoma County?  There’s one?
UNIDENTIFIED:  There’s only one.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  That one and the surrounding ones, you know, they’ll work that out.  But that’s something, ma’am, that your supervisors will somewhat attend to.  So it’s not the last straw on that that you’ll hear here.

Yes, sir.

MR. ADAMS:  Mr. Chair, if I may?  Sorry.  Matt Adams, again, for the Tribe.  If I may just fill in a little bit of detail on some of the specific questions asked.  I think the mitigation program has been caricatured a bit; it’s just a bunch of studies.  And I just want to make sure it’s clear that the mitigation program also includes reduced use of groundwater by the Tribe, use of recycled water by the Tribe, and the Tribe’s funding of water efficiency infrastructure elsewhere in Rohnert Park and the region.
I also just want to make it absolutely clear that the mitigation set out in the Record of Decision, which is enforceable against the Tribe, would cover a situation such as the one that you described; where you have to pump more and so there are increased PG&E costs, you would be covered for that.

MS. POLSTEN:  Um hm.  And that’s included in the Compact?

MR. ADAMS:  That’s actually in the Record of Decision from the National Indian Gaming Commission, which is the condition of the approval of the casino to operate under federal law.

MS. POLSTEN:  Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Okay.  Did we get you covered, ma’am?

MS. POLSTEN:  Thank you for your time.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Okay.  I would suggest that you get a copy of the document that he’s describing.  Your county supervisor or representative will probably be getting a copy of that.  It will just give you more clarity to the question that you raised.

MS. POLSTEN:  Okay.  I’m sorry, what is it actually called, the document that I would …

MR. ADAMS:  It’s called the Record of Decision from the National Indian Gaming Commission and sometimes it’s referred to as the “ROD” or the R-O-D. 

MR. MAIER:  gratoneis.com, it’s the 12th item on the right side of that webpage.
MS. POLSTEN:  Thank you.
SENATOR WRIGHT:  Yes, ma’am.
MS. BETTY FREDERICKS:  Mr. Chairman, my name is Betty Fredericks.  And I’m not used to speaking.  And I wasn’t prepared to come this morning.  Rohnert Park is very close to me.  I live in Rohnert Park.  I work in Rohnert Park.  My husband, Morris Fredericks, and my uncle, Paul Golis, are the founders of the city of Rohnert Park, which is the only master planned community that I know of in the state of California and certainly was the first.  

Rohnert Park is a very family minded community.  It was designed so that we would have neighborhoods.  On each of those neighborhoods we have a school.  We have a park.  Most of them, we have a swimming pool.  It’s a very family oriented community.

A casino of this size, 3,000 slot machines, is a real threat to our community.

We also, years ago, got Jerry Brown’s dad and the State to bring a state college to Rohnert Park, Sonoma State University.  I don’t think, especially if you get on the internet and see the problems across the country that they are having with college students becoming addicted to gambling, that this is an appropriate place for a casino.  

Aside from that, I won’t bother you too much.  Personally, I would like to tell you of a couple of personal experiences.  First of all, a couple of years ago, a little boy came up to one of our members who have been fighting this casino for years, and thanked her.  He said, “I want to thank you for all the work you do in trying to keep this casino out.”  He said, “In my house, we have no food.  My father goes up to River Rock and gambles all our family’s money away.”

We had a little Chinese restaurant in a little commercial space that we had; the mother and the 15-year-old son and her 4-year-old son who she would bring to work every day, they worked so hard and they built up that business to be a nice business.  Unfortunately, they had been financed by someone who wasn’t willing to wait.  And, unfortunately, the husband had a very bad problem.  He also went to River Rock Casino, which is only 15 miles from Rohnert Park, and gambled.  The money was going out of their pockets as soon as it went into their pockets.  They had to leave town in the middle of the night, not even taking their furniture with them, to flee from bill collectors and because they just could not meet their obligations.
So there are personal tragedies.

I would like to say; I was very shocked to see Gabe Gonzalez here this morning and he said that he had not consulted with the city council yet.  I would like to inform you that the city manager that was the city manager, when they negotiated the MOU, soon afterward was canned.  He is no longer our city manager.  And the city councilmembers who were on the council at that time, there’s only one of those people who was still on the city council and he was the one member of the council who voted against the MOU.  

So I also am very impressed by these gentlemen and the facts and figures that they can spew.  But I want to remind you that the sponsor for this casino is Station Casinos.  And Mr. Scott Nielson, who spoke so eloquently with his facts and figures, Station Casinos, if I’m not mistaken, is just coming out of bankruptcy, so are we to take these people as experts?

And that’s all I have to say.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.  Yes, sir.
MR. DAVID GRUNMAN:  My name is David Grunman.  I’m a registered civil engineer in the state of California.  My previous employment, I dealt with land development issues.  So when this project came up I took quite an interest in it since I live about a mile-and-a-half from the site.  
Part of the thing that bothered me about this was the area I’ve lived in for 30-some odd years, was described as uninhabited area by the EIR.  I think in the succeeding years they’ve corrected some of that stuff.  But I recognize that there’s probably other inaccuracies in the EIR, and so, I started delving into it and I was absolutely shocked at some of the statements that came out of that.  One was the water supply.  They said, “Oh, we’ll just deal with Rohnert Park and take some of their water,” and, of course, that went by the wayside.  Now they plan to dig two wells in the middle of a sewage irrigation field, which I don’t think is a very good idea.  But, that’s theirs.  
One of the things that happens in land development is flood control and that’s a big issue, particularly if you’ve been a victim of that.  And one of my charges was to review plans for that type of thing, so I did do that on that on this.  
This project has never had a formal review.  I asked them, “What are you going to do with this water?”  
And they said, “Well, we’ll just run it off into the creek.”  Well, I happen to know that that creek that runs through the property floods every time we get a good rain storm.  I’ve been out there and taken pictures right after rain storms.  That whole area is flooded right now.  And there’s nothing being proposed to correct that.

Another one issue is sewage; how do you get rid of it?  They plan to use … originally they plan to use what they call a manufactured plant.  They bring it out on a truck and those things are very good plants.  They produce a high quality effluent; very reliably used in computers nowadays, which is much better than a human, sorry to say, that used to run a plant.  

Because of the nature of our weather here, sometimes you get a lot of rain.  Their solution is to store it until they can irrigate it on the ground.  The ground out there is adobe and if you’re familiar with that kind of stuff, it’s very, very dense clay.  They even build buildings out of it.  When the rainy weather gets here, that clay fills up and it can’t receive water.  

So I asked the people who wrote the EIR, “What do you plan to do with it then?”

“Well, we’ll store it.”  

And I said, “Well, I know about storage because I’ve done the calcs and they don’t work out.”
“Well, then we’ll just dump it down the creek a little bit at a time.”  You can’t do that.  That’s an environmentally sensitive area.

So the more and more I got into this, the more I realized that the environment is being assaulted here.  So I got involved in a group called Reclaim our Environmental Rights and actually became president, but that’s another story.  Things like that happen.

This area is also a hotbed, if you want, or a central area for what’s called California tiger salamander.  For some reason or another, this project was exempt from that.  I don’t understand how that happened because nobody else has been able to do that.

Earlier there was some testimony about working with the city of Rohnert Park.  I think Ms. Fredricks indicated that some of the council people who signed on it have been removed: three were removed, one refused to run again, the fifth one who is still on the council called his idea of having the casino there a joke and he’s on record several times as saying that.  So I’m not so sure the council at that time … I don’t know; we don’t want to go into that.

The last thing I’d like to talk about is more of a social issue having to do with crime.  There was some testimony earlier of numbers of millions of dollars given to the public safety.  They called Rohnert Park but the public safety people ended up with it.  What they did with that money is they broke a drug gang that they knew existed.  They were just waiting for the money.  It was a show type of thing.  
Since then, our police department has become the highest paid one on a per person basis.  It’s not unusual for them to earn $200,000 a year.  We’re also building up a large fleet of SUVs that they use for patrol cars.  These are Ford Expeditions and if you know what they are, they’re huge.  
Our crime rate according to a published report that was commissioned by the city of Rohnert Park, we have the highest crime rate per thousand people in Sonoma County.  So I’m not sure what all that money did, but I don’t think we got very much for it.
Personally, I look forward to the next election.  Those are my comments.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.  Yes, sir.

MR. LLOYD IVERSON:  I’m Lloyd Iverson.  I’m a member of the California Solar Energy Society; also a member of ASHRSE (American Society Heating Refrigeration Service Engineers); also a member of the Sonoma County Groundwater Planning Commission.  And I got involved in this with other members in the community trying to figure out … trying to be positive and proactive of what can we do about the water issue in Sonoma County.

Although I can’t speak for the commission because we haven’t had time to meet since we found out about this rushed vote last Friday, I’ve come here to tell you that what I’ve learned as a citizen in this committee that has members from cities, it has a lawyer from the Rancheria on the committee who has never had any input to the committee, but I would love to hear positive input from the Rancheria, but one thing I’ve really learned on serving on this committee and working with the USGS, is that the county is, plain and simple, is just an overdraft.  We’re using way, way, way more water than we can sustain.  We’re off the chart.  We’re talking billions of gallons in overdraft.  So what it’s caused is land subsidence.  And people over the years have said, yeah, the land is subsiding.  It’s crushing down.  How do we know that?  Is it here-say or is it true to what’s going on?  
So now I’ve been privy to some current satellite photos using the latest technology that hadn’t actually been published for public use yet but I’ve seen it, showing land subsidence in Rohnert Park, which is the primary area of the aquifer recharge area.  So if this casino gets built on top of this aquifer recharge area, what you’re doing is you’re putting compaction on top of the ground where you’re soaking the water in and you’re overdrafting it from underneath.  Whether you’re putting in two wells 600 feet deep, three wells 200 feet deep, one well 1,000 feet deep, a facility of this size, it has been estimated, would use about the same amount of water as a town of 10,000 people.  So that, just as an estimate, would be 500,000 gallons a day would be … the wells might produce as much as 3.2 billion gallons of water a year.  That would make anything that we’re trying to do on this committee … we’re trying to comply with AB 3030 and come up with a positive groundwater management plan, but the thousands of hours we put into this, we might as well just throw them out the window if we’re going to put this extra burden on the aquifer.  
Now I realize that they’ve done some steps to try to conserve water but they don’t really work.  First of all, you shouldn’t be using water cooled cooling towers on this kind of project; you should be air cooling.  You should be using Freon 404A or 4010A; you should not be doing water cool.  There are serious problems with doing water cooled refrigeration and cooling of this magnitude on this site, and the water should not be used that way. 

Also, the testing for tertiary to water that would be used as purple water is not adequate.  Testing for 17 to 30 different contaminants in the water is completely inadequate when we have probably 88,000 chemicals in commercial use today.  When these chemicals go into the cooling towers and get distributed throughout the local community, they can cause disease and many other problems.  

Also, I’d like to say that the ROD is not adequate.  It’s flawed and it has the potential to cause breach in the basic Compact.  

I also own seven parcels of farmland all around the casino site.  I have four wells ranging from 10 feet to 237 feet.  Two of the wells have gone dry in the last ten years.  And I have learned from this Groundwater Planning Committee that we need to have a program for monitoring these wells and get a baseline in place well before anything like this is approved so we know what the wells are doing in the area.  The problem is, there are 44,000 estimated wells in this area—44,000 wells in this immediate area, many of which are not documented because they’re so old because people have been living on these wells—these family farm wells—for 80, 100 years, 50 years, 60 years.  My wells are all 60 and 80 years old except for one new one.  

So our biggest fear on the water committee is that this completely inadequate environmental impact study will throw this entire water basin into adjudication.  We don’t want adjudication; we want to have a constructive positive way of helping all members in the community pull together and share this limited water resource that also enables Marin County to function.  If we wipe out this water resource, Marin County won’t have water, Sebastopol won’t have water, Sonoma won’t have water.  Sonoma has a basin plan and it won’t work either.  
So in conclusion, I would suggest that this action be tabled and that some really honest, true, constructive, concrete scientific solutions be created before this thing goes forward.  And I certainly appreciate your time.  Thank you.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.  Yes, sir.

PASTOR CHIP WORTHINGTON:  Mr. Chairman, Pastor Chip Worthington of the Stop the Casino 101 Coalition.  I have a letter here that I would like submitted into the record.  I don’t know how to do that.  I ask that my record and the appropriate pages from the Compact and also from the gaming acquisition, pages 4 and 7, also be included.  

I think I’m one of the few lay people who has read the Compact.  

SENATOR WRIGHT:  You’re probably one of the few people who’s read the Compact.

PASTOR WORTHINGTON:  Pardon?

SENATOR WRIGHT:  You might be one of the few people who has read the Compact.

PASTOR WORTHINGTON:  Well, I’ve read all 287 pages of it.  It’s extremely complex.  It is very difficult for someone who is not a lawyer to understand what is in it.  And the first point that I would like to make, is that I believe that the gut and amend process is denying us due process under the Constitution.  
My sister-in-law almost had a fatal heart attack the same day I was notified through lobbyists that the gut and amend process was beginning.  

The people of Sonoma County have not been notified of the compact process.  Only about one out of ten people takes the Press Democrat.  In the Compact it’s stated in a number of ways, and it’s a little ambiguous, that there will be notices in the public library.  It is stated that the people in the city and the people in the county will be notified of the environmental impact of the Compact.  Many people in Sonoma County are not aware of this hearing.  

My first point of testimony is that I would hope that things would slow down.  The rumor is that there is going to be a vote Thursday.  Construction will begin Friday.  I’m going to take Mr. Applegate at his word that construction will not begin until after negotiations are done with the county.  

I’m aware … I read Machiavellian, fortunately, at thirteen.  I repudiated that with the Constitution and the bible.  I am a minister, and that’s the foundation of what I do.  

Number one, Stations Casinos does not have a good track record with its bonds.  Those people at Stations Casino stock and sold it, the common stock, at 87 and made a lot of money.  
But this committee and the Legislature should look long and hard at what the income is going to be from the casino.  There is no guarantee—there is no guarantee—that mitigation money will come if the income is not substantiated.
Also, too, there is only so much money in the North Bay and the money that will come for all the mitigation comes from somewhere.  To put it another way, there is a gross county or gross North Bay product; it’s limited.  Stations Casinos markets within a one-hour radius.  Mr. Nielson in his pattern of marketing in Las Vegas has been well documented.  They market to locals.  In fact, before I knew Mr. Nielson, my father, when he was alive, took me to the number one place Stations had, the bingo parlor.  We went there for a fish dinner that they had and he told me locals go there.  So local money will be coming and that local money will come out of money which would be dispersible for other businesses and institutions.  
It’s rather ironic we just had a … what’s the name of it? … Hooters open up in Rohnert Park.  It’s after about six weeks of its opening …

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Reverend, you didn’t go to Hooters, did you?

PASTOR WORTHINGTON:  Pardon?

SENATOR WRIGHT:  You didn’t go to the Hooters did you?

PASTOR WORTHINGTON:  I’ve been tempted.  (Laughter)  … No, I haven’t been there but I’ve been tempted.  

SENATOR WRIGHT:  Just checking.

PASTOR WORTHINGTON:  Well, thank you very much.  Ministers need confession of sin too.  Thank you, sir.

SENATOR WRIGHT:  “Lead us not into temptation but deliver us from evil; for Thine is the Kingdom and the Power and the Glory.”

PASTOR WORTHINGTON:  Well, I didn’t know we were going to have the Lord’s Prayer, but if we all want to say it together, that’s fine with me.


There’s also a proverb that says that “A bribe worketh wonders.”  


So this is a very tenuous situation.  If 2,000 slots were adequate, then the Compact would not have been negotiated for 3,000 slots.  That’s because of gambling competition.


Now, in my first paragraph of the letter that I’ve submitted it says, “Whereas the TEIS or NEPA is fatally flawed in the major areas of air quality, endangered species, current and past future impacts, flooding, __________ and pedestrian traffic issues, water quality and water quantity issues, as per IGRA 15110, inadequate beyond one year and based on studies of 2,000 slots, now stated at 3,000 slot machines.”  In my opinion, Sir, the TEIS or the NEPA is fatally flawed and there needs to be more county input on it.  To approve the Compact based on facts which are taken into evidence over five years ago—five years ago—I believe that that environmental study is fatally flawed.

As per the Compact Section 118.6, it says, “failure to prepare an adequate TEIR shall be deemed as a breach of compact.”  Mr. Applegate was with …


SENATOR WRIGHT:  Smith.  Appelsmith.


PASTOR WORTHINGTON:  Appelsmith.  Excuse me.  I was thinking of Johnny Appleseed.  Forgive me.  We together looked at Wilford Avenue.  These are the comments of this gentleman from the governor.  He said, “Wilford Avenue is dangerous.”  This was said in front of Mr. Healy and myself.  He said, “This is a dangerous narrow street and the casino should not be built until it’s mitigated.”  I know of no plans to mitigate Wilford Avenue.  In fact, the water that’s the border of Wilford Avenue, that water, by a county plan, that water is part of vernal pools.  And so, to widen that from two to four lanes to take the excess of 30,000 traffics a day, it violates the county plan.


The other thing about our gentleman here environmentally; there’s been much touted about the site and the approval of the ROD.  When this site (and I wish Mr. Nielson would have talked to me before they bought it; I could have saved the Tribe a lot of money) … this was a commercial site and it failed—it failed.  Parson Engineerings did a CEQA study on it and it failed.  Now why if the standards of the state of California were examined, why did the site fail a CEQA study and yet it passed the NEPA or the ROD study?  So the first point of my letter is that the compact should not be voted on because the environmental regulations, it’s _____ flawed.


Number two, the Sonoma County Board of Supervisors … let’s take the Rohnert Park City Council.  The Rohnert Park City Council, there was a recall of city councilmembers.  The citizens of Sonoma County—the citizens of Sonoma County—overwhelmingly oppose this casino.  The reason the negotiations have not become public with the Rohnert Park City Council is because of the public outcry.  And it’s my understanding that the Rohnert Park City Council, and I’m sorry that the city manager is not here, refused—and maybe someone can help me if this fact is in error—refused to talk to the board of supervisors.  We heard through the grapevine they said, “We’ve got our money; we’re not going to talk to the board of supervisors.”  
I went to the head of the board of supervisors and I begged—I begged—I pleaded with the board of supervisors, “Please have a public hearing and explain to the citizens of Sonoma County what the Compact is and what your options are.”  Then I begged the head of the board of supervisors, “Please allow public input in terms of mitigation.”  The mitigation money is a joke!  It is ludicrous!  It is totally and completely inadequate for traffic, water, sewer, gambling addiction.  Let me give you an example:

No one here has stated that right next to the casino site is a mobile home park with families.  If adequate mitigations were taken, that park should be purchased, those families should be moved out.  Let me give you a reason.  There will be hundreds and hundreds of trips of diesel buses.  Bay Area Quality says that the pollution 
level is only to be allowed 1,000th of one percent in Sonoma County by Highway 101.  The ROD is totally inadequate.  The diesel buses that will come to that site will add extra fumes and the children that live in that trailer park are susceptible to the diesel fumes greater than adults.  Also, there are two child places where children go.  There’s a Scandia Amusement Park and there’s an In-N-Out-Burger.  These two places are occupied by many, many, many children.  The prevailing winds come from west to east.  The fumes from the diesel buses and from the cars will affect those children also.  There can’t be any mitigation for that.


The next part of my paragraph says, “Whereas, Section 20BUSB2719B1 states, ‘Checklist for gaming acquisitions page-7, a legal opinion from the Office of the Solicitor concluding the proposed acquisition come within ____ exceptions must be included.’”  


I’m going to ask the lawyers here from the Tribe, I am not an expert in Indian law, but as I read this, there’s something called lands determination.  Land can be taken into trust but there must be an opinion from the solicitor that this land is eligible for gaming.  I have no record of that.  We have done a ROD with the federal government for over 18 months asking for the specifics that this site was eligible for gaming.  We have received a table of contents.  And perhaps the attorney from the Tribe can tell me if there has been a determination from the solicitor that this land is eligible for gaming?


SENATOR WRIGHT:  Reverend __________ .

PASTOR WORTHINGTON:  I’m sorry.  Alright.  In my opinion, we know that the Buena Vista Tribe had a compact approved but the land was not determined eligible for gaming and there is no casino right now on the Buena Vista Lands that were taken into trust because it was not determined eligible for gaming.  In our opinion, that is still up in the air.


The next point in my letter that I would like to make is the economic loss of $300 million to $450 million a year is a minimum loss of $30 million or $45 million a year to state and local government.  That’s a minimum.  That’s a 10 percent  … mitigation numbers that have been said here today are nowhere even one-tenth of $30- or $45 million.  The State is going to lose money.  The county is going to lose money.  There are going to be government employees that are going to lose their job because the tax base is going to be diminished.


The state of California has one facility for problem gambling.  It’s located in Las Vegas, Nevada.  The mitigation for gambling addiction needs to be increased at least a hundredfold.  


For these reasons, I am requesting all members of the state Legislature to reject the Graton Compact as it violates the above laws and is not in the best interest of the people.  If the people of Sonoma County were allowed to vote—if they were allowed to vote—they would reject the Compact and they would reject the casino.


I believe that Chairman Sarris is benevolent in his mitigation measures.  And I believe that there are tribal members who want to do what’s best for the county.  But the Compact as it is written with these facts should be rejected, because when you weigh the benefits and the loss, the loss to the citizens of Sonoma County is overwhelming.


Thank you so much for your attention.


SENATOR WRIGHT:  Thank you.  That will conclude our hearing.  
Again, we’re not taking a vote today because in the Senate Committee we don’t have a vote.  I don’t yet have a schedule when this will go before the full Senate for a vote.  But let me say that after that, this bill will go to the Assembly where there will be another hearing similar to this one and then it will go to the Assembly for a vote.  After that, it will go to the federal government, where the Department of the Interior will again review the Compact, review the terms, some of the issues relative to IGRA and whether or not the land is legally in trust, some of those issues, as well as some of the numbers that were discussed earlier, whether or not those issues are onerous.  I can tell you that the Department of Interior does not rubber stamp what the State does, so there will be a hearing in the … excuse me, there will be a vote up or down because in our state process, the Legislature can’t amend a compact.  There will be a similar process in the Assembly.  Once that’s done, this measure will then go to the Department of the Interior.  Well, they too will look at it in consideration of its conformance with federal law and IGRA and those issues.  And it is only after all of that’s concluded, that construction can start.

Thank you all for coming.  I think that we got everyone’s consideration.  And I understand that the Assembly GO Committee is going to hear it tomorrow.

As I mentioned earlier, by the way, we don’t yet have a bill in front of us, but in our case, this is an informational hearing and we wanted to provide that opportunity.  I know for some people, and I appreciate the distance coming here from Sonoma County, but with that, we’re going to be adjourned.  


Thank you, all of the witnesses who testified.  The members of the Graton Tribe, good luck as you move forward.  And I hope all the issues are worked out to the satisfaction to everyone involved.


Thank you.
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